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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Lemon Tree Hotels
Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 2019, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information (herein
referred to as “the standalone financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the Trust referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs)., Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred Lo in the Other Matters section below,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone

financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Y ‘Key: audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
w significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
Ay .'matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements
e as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
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on these matters. We have determined the matters described below te be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’'s Response

Impairment of Investment in
subsidiaries and associates (Refer
Note 7 to the Standalone Financial
Statements)

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has
investment  in  subsidiaries  and
assoclates with an aggregated carrying
amount of Rs. 72,184 lacs (51% of the
total assets of the Company) as
disclosed in Note 7 to the financial
statements.

Few entities had incurred losses after
tax for the financial year ended March
31, 2019,

This increased the risk that the carrying
amount of the Company's investment in
subsidiaries  might exceed  their
recoverable amount. We identified the
carrying wvalue of the Company's
investment in subsidiaries as a key audit
matter because of its significance to
total assets in the Company's financial
statements and it required us to
exercise judgement in evaluating the
appropriateness of the assumptions
used in deriving the recoverable amount
to assess the adequacy of management
impairment loss provision.

Principal audit procedures performed:

We assessed the Company’s evaluation on the
reasonableness of the indicators and impairment
testing of investments in subsidiaries and
associates,

We inquired management about the
understanding of subsidiary’s business and
strategies, historical performance and free cash
flows for the last 5 years.

In case of losses of 2 subsidiaries, we obtained
the projected cash flows of the subsidiary, We
held discussions with management to
understand the basis for the assumptions used,
verified the mathematical accuracy of the free
cash flow model and challenged the
reasonableness of the discounted cash Fflow
projections and the evidence supporting the
underlying assumptions used by the Company,
by comparing to approved budgets, considering
budget accuracy, cost inflation and discount
rates.

Uncertain tax position (including
deferred tax asset)

(Refer Note 8.1 to the Standalone
Financial Statements)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits
(including MAT credit) and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and
sed tax losses can be utilised.

Principal audit procedures performed:

Our procedures in relation to Uncertain tax
position (including deferred tax asset) included
understanding management’s process for
recognition of deferred tax assets for all
deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits (including MAT
credit) and any unused tax losses;

We assessed whether the methodology used to
calculate and recognise the deferred tax asset is
appropriate considering the tax rates applicable
as per the income tax laws prevalling in India,
past performance, future projections and
probability for the availability of the taxable
profit against which the deductible temporary

%




1
\

LA

q

({ I it

Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP

The carrying amount of deferred tax | differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
assels (including MAT credit available) is | credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assels are
re-assessed al each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered,

We also tested the accuracy and completeness of
the inputs to the calculation, mathematical
accuracy of the calculation and appropriateness
of the related disclosures provided in the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion & Analysis,
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report and Report on Corporate Governance, but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinian on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters

.., felated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
~management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.
fan A
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
malntain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal

contraol,

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date
of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company

to cease to continue as a golng concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation,

% ' Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
A ;Eﬁlrnpanv and its trust to express an opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the standalone
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
or business activities included in the standalone financial statements, which have been
audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of maost significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the maltter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of Krizm Hotel Private Limited Employee
Welfare Trust (the "Trust”) whose financial statements reflect total revenues of Rs. Nil,
total assets of Rs. 915.33 lacs and net cash inflows of Rs, 90.08 lacs for the year ended
March 31, 2019, as considered in the standalone financial statements. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished to us
by the management and our opinion on the standalone financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of such trust, is based solely
on the report of other auditor.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below is not madified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the Trust,
referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

& o
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a)

b)

d)

e)

f

g9)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanatiens which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports

of the other auditors.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of

account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act,

On the basis of the written representations recelved from the directors as on March
31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164{2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A". Our report expresses an
unmaodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 157 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements. (Refer note 31)

ii, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.(Refer note

44)

ili.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.(Refer note
45)
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)

: \\.L \ﬂja'f Agarwal

(Partner)
{Membership No. 094468)

@
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 29, 2019

&
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lemon Tree
Hotels Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013,
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Nolte require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system

over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

VN company's internal financial control over financial reporting Is a process designed to
@ prnvlde reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
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preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's Internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrels over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future perlods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deleriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)

!"\.l' \‘I LU“'- '\.""—"'-‘ ;j'
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([ | Vijay Agarwal
\EAN i) (Partner)
(Membership No, 094468)

Place: New Delhi :
Date: May 29, 2019 '@
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ANMEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(1)

(i)

{ili}

(iv)

(v)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative detalls and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all
the items in a phased manner over a period of two years which, in our
opinion, Is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were
physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) According to the information, explanations given to us, and the records
examined by us we report that:

i based on the examination of the confirmation received by us from

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, HDFC Bank Limited and VISTRA

ITCL (India) Ltd (custodian) on behalf of Yes Bank in respect of

immovable properties (freehold land and buildings disclosed as

fixed asset in the financial statements), whose title deeds have

been pledged as security for loans, are held in the name of the

Company.

ii. based on the examination of the registered conveyance deed of
remaining immovable properties provided to us, we report that,
the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land
and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date,

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by
the Management at reasonable intervals and no discrepancies were noticed on

physical verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given o us,
the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of making investments. The Company has not granted any
loans, made investments or provide guarantees under Section 185 of the
Companies Act 2013. As per Section 186 (11) read with Schedule VI, provisions
of Section 186 with respect to grant of loans and providing guarantees would
not apply to the Company as the Company is providing infrastructural facilities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposit during the year.
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(vi)

{wil)

(viil)

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of
cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, hence reporting under clause (vi) of the
Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("CARO 2016") Is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,

including, Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales
Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. Also refer to the
note 31(f) in the financial statement regarding management assessment on
certain matters relating to the provident fund.

We are informed that the Excise duty and Customs duty is not applicable to
the Company.

{b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,

Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods
and Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

We are informed that the Excise duty and Customs duty is not applicable to
the Company.

(c) There are no dues of Income tax, Sales tax, Customs Duty, Value Added tax

and Excise duty which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2019 on
account of disputes. Details of dues of Service Tax, which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2019 on account of disputes are given below:

Name Mature of Forum where Period to Amount
of Dues Dispute is which Unpaid
Statute Pending the (Rs. in
Amount
Relates Lace)
Service | Service Central Excise and | FY 2007-
Tax Tax Service Tax | 09 to 113,55
Rule, Appellate tribunal 2012-13
1994

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to
financial institutions and banks. The Company has not taken any loans or
borrowings from government and not issued any debentures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the term loan have been applied by the Company during the year for the
purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised any money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).
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()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiil)

{ xiv)

(xv)

(xwi)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company Is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of
the CARO 2016 Order is not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013, for all transactions with the related parties entered during the year and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed In the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence
reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or directors of its subsidiary or associate company or persons
connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause (xvi) of
CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No, 117366W / W-100018)

= U

vuav Agarwal

(Partner)
[Mernbershlp No. 094468)

Place: Mew Delhi @
Date: May 29, 2019
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Lisminn Teee Huotels Ligitid

Statement of Profit and Liss for e year endedd March 31, 2009

Duate ; May 29, 2019

Dinte : May 29, 2010

Mole Year ended Year ended
Marels 31, 2019 March X1, 2018
e in Inlihs R i lukhs
Revents Mrom operalions 20 1733215 23, 1040
Chler incomo 2l g ARl Ts03
Totul Incame (1) 28.264.25 NEI
Expenses
Cost ol food ad beveriges comsumed 22 177258 1.559.00
Emplinvee benelils expense 23 5,764,858 309336
Clither expenses M 160154 965222
Total expenses (1) 18.22%.00 16, 304,61
Farnings before interest, tax, deprecintion nod amoriisation 1,035.25 7,508 83
{EBETRA) (1-11) (refer note 2.2 (5))
Finance civsts 25 3AT9.99 I4288F
Finmce incomnme M 21 {524.28)
Depreciation and amortization expense Fij 1,983.75 1, 076.6%
Profii belore tax 4.844.90 282758
Twx expenses
Cuerren) tax (Under MAT) 100479 41333
Deferred tax
« MAT eredit entitbement relnted o carment year (999,92}
- MAT credit entilbement relaled to carlier years {1, 3000.30)
= [Beferred twx expense relaled bo cupient year 1G657.00 =
- Dreferred tix asset nal recognized in earlier years {1.830.97) =
(1ATAAD) 41333
Prafit for the yenr 06, 324.30 221425
Onler eompreliensive invome
‘i) Teems Uit will not be reclnssificd o prolit o foss
fte-nsensurement {losses)igning on defined benclit plans {22,58) 235
ii) Income tax effeet 4,86 {0507
{17.72) 1.85
Total comprehensive liicome for the yeir 06,54 221000
Enrmings per equily share x
[ 1) Basic a8 (.80 .28
{2 Drilutesd b 0.80 0.28
The sccompanying notes are an integral part of tie lnacinl stalements. | o 45
A per aur repon of even date
For Deloitie Hasking & Sclls LLP For pod on behalf of the Board of Divectors of
Chartered Accounlints Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
rL
%’ L | G 0 i (\,H_
- e /
vu., .-tguwu.l - -_, Putanjali G, Keswani Kapil Sharma Wiljail feihi
A {Chairman & Mmiaging {Chiel Financial OTicer) (Ciroul Company Secretary
I [Hrectisr) & GM Logal)
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Lemon Tree Hotel Limited
©ash Now statement For the year ended March 31, 20049

Far ibe year ended Vo the yeur ended
March 30, 209 March 31, 2018
s o Lakiv s in lakhs
Ao Cash Mow Trom speratiog sctivities

Frofit lelfore tax 4,544,590 2,67158
Moa-¢nih wdjistments o neconcile profil befone ax 1o net casl fHews:
Depreciation and mmamsition expenses 1,983,785 1 976 68
|Lease equalisniion resetvy 145,77 14537
Finance income dincluding fir value change i fiioncinl instraments) {203,783 (524.29)
Finance oosts A 17895 3,080 3
Trrovixion fox grataity 3356 1532
Prowsion for leave cncashiment 66 675
[ruwision For loyaliy programimic w5 565
Armortizatken of propayment expendes 24442 TS el
Shane based poyments o emphoyees 9316 04,94
Fxcens provision’ credit halances writhen back - (4.6F)
Prods on velinguishment of rights AR i ol
Provision for liigalion LA ] a0
Wet [z hoss on sale of property plant and ogui pmend 42 11.26%
MNet ginin on sale of invesiments (30.50) -
Oyperating profit belore working capital changes:* 9,565,540 1260
Movemnents in working capilal:
{Inerense) in (e recsvilies (2.502.67) (HOT 1k)
[Jeerensed Increase) in lons and sdvanoes amd olher curfent iseds 102753 [2A548%)
{Incrense)Diverewse in myeniories {3.09} 1dd
[ncrease m [inbifities and provisions B05.22 B1D 0
Cah Genevited From Operaikons 9,391.89 500275
[ireet faxes paid (et of refimds) (RO2.31) 6535
et cah fow from aperafing sciivitio (A) H, 5L 5N 549810
Cush Mlows used [n investlng activities
Taischane of Property, Pinnt snd Equapment (adjustment of CWIP, capital advances and capital ereditars) (G94L6T) (130661 )
Trusceeds from sabe of property plant snd equpaizit 1480 T K|
[rerchase of nvedmend in sibaidiarasoiate companies {811 {19,041.29)
{ Prarchasepsale of comenl svestinenis { 1,0MB.9H) -
Anle of investment in subsidiary compnnies 26,04 1Lon
Redemption of preference shares in sulsidiary compamics = 1, DR L0
Tt on relinguashiment of rights I ' h
I.ong term loan repaid by subsidiaries - 11.81502
Shorl tesm lowns {given}repabd (topby subsidinres (S AH5.61) {1,068y
Imlenesl receivied 13567 14667
MNet Coeh flow used in investing scilvities () [ERAERTN] {2, 700.0%)
Cavh Miws used o fmoncing activilies®"
Proceeds from sunnce of share capiinl G100 1, 07741
Proceeds fim long term horrowings 4,608.2% 1,548 52
Repayment of long lerm bodrowings (2000.01) 110,264 73)
| Repayment )’ proceeds of shorl lerm botrowings {3 A447.96) {B4% 23
Iregies) poid (3. 285.E1) {3,197 i)
Mot Cohi v unld fn fhulﬂ nillvinies (C7) {3.505.67) (2384 K3}

(Thiz spave has beert itertionally lofl Blank)




Lesan Tree Habeld Limited

ik Mo stmtement for the March 31, 2019
Fisr ihe year endisl For (he yenr endod
Murch 31, 2019 Manch 31, 2048
B i Lk R i ks
Hﬂhmmhuﬁmﬂm‘nquhuhuhuru+ﬁ 469,00 e
Crigh amd. cash equivalents at e beginning ol the year 57060 S I8
Crisdh mnd coghy evqulvabents ac i mnal Hi r modo 42) 0
Crsh and cash equivalents ot the end of the yenr 104060 57160
Compoaents of cash and cxsh oquivalents
ki oo Tinnd 166 6,89
Biillasces with selieduled banks in
= Cinren| socounis 1ANE54 34471
Tuial cash and cash eiuivalents 1 0,k 57160

#*[nciuder workiag capitsl movemend oo pecoint of amadgamntion (Refer note 42)
8 There s i non-cadh chinges srisng from fimencing sctivitien

The accompanying notes are an intcgral pst of the financial Imds
sinlemenis
s per o eepert of mven dite

Fu and on behall of Mie Moard of Dircctars of
Lemun Tree Halels Limiied
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Lemon Tree Holels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

ji

2.1

.1

(a)

Corporate Information

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the Company is located at Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-

110037,

The principal aclivities of the Company is to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, operating, managing, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants,
ete. under the brand name of Lemon Tree Hotel, Lemon Tree Premier and Red Fox Hotel,

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of directors on May 29, 2019.
Basis of preparation of financial statements and Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation and Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS), and the provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 ('the Acl’) (to the extenl notified). The
Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafier.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
convention and on an acerual method of accounting, except for certain [inancial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair value / amortised cost (refer note 34)

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued necounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing account standard required a change 1o

the accounting policy hitherto to in use,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

Significant accounting policies
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification, An asset is treated as current when it is;

 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading
« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used (o settle a linbility

for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Al other assels are classifled as non-currenl.

A liability is current when:

o [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due 1o be setiled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(b)

(€)

5

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its

operating cycle.
Foreign currencies
Functional and preseniation currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Presentation currency is the currency in which the company’s financial
stalements are presented, Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity
primarily generates and expends cash. All the financial information presented in Indian
Rupees (INR) has been rounded 1o the nearest of lakhs rupees, except where otherwise stated,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies arc translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on seltlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,

respectively).
Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assel or transfer the
liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the Company.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes (o financial statéements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markel
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inpuls.

All assets and linbilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whiole:

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the

fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting, period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assels measured at fair
value, External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various eriteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, afier discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation techniques

and inputs to use for cach case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-sssessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine

whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the

level of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes:

« Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 29)
« Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 34)
« Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 34)

@
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(d)

Revenue recopnition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” which establishes a comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of
revenue o be recognised. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using cumulative catch-up
transition method, where any effect arising upon application of this standard is recognised as
at the date of initial application (i.e April 1, 2018). The standard is applied only lo contracts
that are not completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative information in
the statement of profit and loss is not restated - i.e. the comparative information continues to
be reported under previous standards on revenue i.e Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. There was no
impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 to the financial statements of the Company.

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Company has applied the guidance
in Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the
revenue recognition criteria for each distinet performance obligation. The arrangements wilh
customers generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as
distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has
measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative
standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is
the best evidence of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the ceonomic benefits will flow lo
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured a1 the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses ils revenue arfangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue amangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Sales Tax/ Value Added Tax (VATY Goeds and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the
Company on ils own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by
the seller on behalf of the government., Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restawrant, Banguets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on & day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT), Goods and Service Tax (GST) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the
billed as at the year-end is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized al
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax [ VAT/

Goods and Service Tax (GST).

Tnterest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective intérest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or 4 shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest
income Is included in finance income in the income statement.
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(e)

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right o receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Memagement Fee

Revenue from management services comprises fixed & variable income. Fixed income is
recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.
Variable income is recognised on an acerual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant

agreemenl.

Taxes

Tax expense represents Current income tax and Deferred tax,

Carrent fincome ax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period/year. Taxable profit dilfiers
from *profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax assels and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities,

Current income tax relating to items recognised oulside profit or loss is recognised oulside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction gither in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

where appropriate.
Deferred rax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, excepl:

« When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in & transaction that is not a business combination and, al the time of the

transaction, affects neither the accounting profil nor taxable profit or loss
o In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused fax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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(n

=  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

= In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed al
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised fo
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

assel 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised oulside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for

separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and eircumstances chanpe. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement

period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zeto, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
olher acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Sales! Value Added Taxes/Goods & Service Tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring
expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except;
« When the tax incurred on a purchase of assels or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquigition

of the asset or as pait of the expense item, as applicable
= When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the
previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and
equipment,

&




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mavch 31, 2019

(2)

Capital work in progress is stated at cost. Property, Plant and equipment s stated at cost, net
of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use, Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Freehold land is not depreciated.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are safisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule IT of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Uselul life considered

Plant & Machinery 15 Year
Building 60 Years
Electrical equipments and fittings 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 8 Years
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years
Commercial Vehicles 6 Years
Private Vehicles B Years

Computers 3 Years

The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building, plant
and equipment over estimated useful lives which are lower than the useful life prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, The management belicves that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely

to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate,

Intangible asseis

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value al the date of

I
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acquisition. Following initial recognition, infangible assets are carried at cos less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assels are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, bul are tested for impairment
ai each year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supporiable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite o finite is made on a prospective

basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assel are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Investment properties

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its Investment properties recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Investment properties.

Investment properties are properties held to eam rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for such purposes). Investmen properlies are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent (0 initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment loss, if any.

The Company depreciates building compaonent of investment property over the remaining
estimated useful life on the date of purchase after considering total economic useful life of 60

Years,

Though the Company measures investment property using deemed cost based measurement,
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are delermined
based on an evaluation performed by an aceredited external independent valuer,

Investment properties are derccognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assel is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition,

Borrowing cosls
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically 1o finance a project, the amount
capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred, Where surplus funds are available
oul of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such
current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company

€
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during the year, Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
inferrupied.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipis over the
expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease, The arrangement is, or contains, a
lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right fo use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement,

For arrangements enfered into prior to April |, 2015, the Company has determined whether
the arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of

transition.
Company as a lessee

A lease is classified al the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating lease.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
asset {s depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term,

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease term unless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefil
even if the payments fo the lessors are not on that basis, or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. [f payments
to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not
met.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating fease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating lease receipt are recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease term unless either:

(8) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even If the receipt from the lessee are not on that basis, or

(b) The receipts from the lessee are structured to increase in line with expected gencral
inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. If receipls
from the lessee vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is
not met.
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Stamp duties payable to local authorities on registration of lease agreements, are recognised as
prepaid expense and charged off to Statement of Profit and Loss on an equitable basis over the
lease term.

Conversion charges payable to local authorities on conversion of use of industrial plot for
hotel purposes, are recognised as prepaid expense and charged off’ to statement of profit and
loss on an equitable basis over the lease term.

(k) Inveniories

Stock of food and beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less

estimated costs necessary to make sale,
in Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. I any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset Is
required, the Company estimates the assel’s recoverable amouni. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows thai are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company's of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market fransaclions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions ean be
identificd, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGLUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longet periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows afler the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recovetable amount since the last impairment loss was

((Xe)e
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recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the assel does not exceed iis
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case; the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions
Creneral

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a resull of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement,

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a

finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate, If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to

settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
Contingent Assets/ Linbilitics

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes 1o accounts when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount

cannot be made,

Deferred Revenue

The Company operates a loyalty point’s programme, which allows customers to accumulate
points when they obtain services in the Company’s Hotels. The points can be redeemed for
free products/ nights, subject to a minimum number of points being obtained. Consideration
received is allocated between the Room Revenue and the points issued, with the consideration
allocated to the points equal to their fair value, Fair value of the points is determined by
applying & statistical analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as
revenue when the points are redeemed.
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Hetirement and other employee beneliis

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. if the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability afler deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme, Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expensed off at the time of payment of premium.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the assel ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a carresponding debit or eredit lo
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are nol
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
# The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related resiructuring costs

Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit Tiability or
asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as

an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on

curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
s Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions 1o the respective funds are due, There are no other obligations other than the

contribution payable to the respective frusts.
Short-term and other long-term employee benefifs

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted

amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured ot the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in

respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date,
The Company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such

compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the

3
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statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
seftlement for 12 months afier the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right to defer the seftlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial lability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assels
Initial recognition and measurenient

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asscts not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within @ time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the assel.

Subsequent meastirement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified in following

calegories:

s [Debt instruments at amortised cosl

s Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

« Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

« Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

» Equity instruments in subsidiaries/associates carried at cost

Dehy instruments at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The difference between the transaction
amount and amertized cost in case of interest free loan to subsidiaries based on the expected
repayment period is considered as ‘deemed investment on account of interest free loan lo
subsidiaries’ (Refer Note 7(i)). After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amorfised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss, If there is any change in estimate for payment of loan
(provided that there was no error in original estimate) , difference in carrying amount and
repayment has been adjusted as return on capital by the parent, based on condition/ situation
prevailing on that date. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or
loss.
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Dbt instrament at FYTOCT

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Diebe instrument at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meel
the eriteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In
addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’),

The Company has designated compulsory redeemable preference shares investments in its
subsidiaries at FVTPL, The difference between the transaction amount and amortized cosl is
considered as *deemed investment in compulsory redeemable preference shares’ (Refer Note

2.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity instruntents

All equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS 109
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in financial
statements less impairments if any. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category
are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assel or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’'s balance

sheet) when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assel or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through® arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assef, bul has

transferred control of the assel.
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Impairment of financial assefs

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance,

b} Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCL

¢} Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables, The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

At each reporting date, for recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk
exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in eredit risk since initial
recognition, then the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-
month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which resulis from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash Mows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all

cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected undler the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

s Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

# Debt instruments measured at FVYTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at
fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value, Rather, ECL
amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount® in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaived (POCI)
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financial assets, le., financinl assets which are credit Impaired on purchase/
origination,

Financial labilifies

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially a1 fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and financial puaraniee contracts.

Subsequeni measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for

trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred lor the

purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value pains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI, These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
loss.

Financial liabilities ar amortized cosi

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well

as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as

finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 15.
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Financial guarantee

Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of group companies are designated as
‘Insurance Contracts’, The Company assess at the end of each reporting period whether its
recognised insurance liabilities (if any) are adequate, using current estimates of future cash
flows under its insurance contracts, [T that assessment shows that the carrving amount of

its insurnnce linbilities is inadequate in the light of the estimated [uture cash Nows, the entire

deficiency is recognised in profit or loss,

If a financial guarantee is an integral element of debis held by the entity, it is nol aceounted
for separately.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially differenl lerms, or the terms ol an exisling liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounis is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 1o realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Cuash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share-based payments

Certain employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive part of their
remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (*equity settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees measured at fair value at the date at
which they are granted using an appropriate valuation model, That cost is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over
the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-setiled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest, The statement of
profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits

expense.
Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining

the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will

ultimately vest.

]
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When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minlmum expense recognised is
the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met,
An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured
at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty,
any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit
or loss.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITIDA) as a separate line itern on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In
its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,
interest income, finance costs, and tax expense.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or fulure
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operaling, investing and financing activities of
the Company are segregated.

Earnings Per Share (LPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity
sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding

during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the period
plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all
the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares,

Recent accounting pronouncement issued bul not yet effective uplo the date of issuance
of financial statements

a)  Ind AS 116, Leases

Ind AS 116 — ‘Leases’ was notified on 30th March 2019, which is applicable for the
accounting period beginning from lst April 2019. For lessees, the standard eliminates the
classification of leases as either operating or finance, as required by Ind AS 17, and instead
introduces a single lease accounting model. Applying that model a lessee is required to
recognize, (a) assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value and (b) depreciation of leased assets separately from
interest on lease liabilities in the income statement. Lessor Accounting under Ind AS 116 will
not be having any transitional impact on initial recognition. Under Ind AS 17, the company
was charging lease rental in statement of Profit and loss, which would be charged as
depreciation and finance cost under Ind AS | 16, having a favourable impact on EBITDA.

A lessor shall recognise lease payments from leases as income on either straight-line or
another systematic basis, The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

« Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS &
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Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
» Modified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
Standard recognized at the date of initial application,

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the

right of use asset either at:

« lis carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted al lessee’s ineremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

= An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date
of initial application.

The company is in the process of evaluating the impact of transitioning from old standard i.e
Ind AS 17 1o new standard i.e Ind AS 116 and the transition approach.

b)  Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

This Appendix clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in Ind
AS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. In such a circumstance, an entity
shall recognise and measure its current or deferred tax asset or liability applying the
requirements in Ind AS 12 based on taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and fax rates determined applying this Appendix, The Company is in the
process of evaluating the impact of this Appendix.

¢)  Amendment to Ind AS 12- Income Taxes

On March 30, 2019, the amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, 'Income Taxes', in
connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income lax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the
entity originally recognised those past transactions or events,

The amendment is effective from annual period beginning from April 1, 2019, The Company
does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

d) Amendment to Ind AS 19- Employce Benefits

On March 30, 2019, the amendments to Ind AS 19, in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an enlity, to use updated
assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period
after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and to recognise in profit or loss as part of
past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that
surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling,

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April
1, 2019. The Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment,

&
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes 1o financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019

4. Capital work-in-progress
As nt Asmt
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Hs in lnkhs Bs in lakhs

Hatel ai Shimla
Muterial 056,63 568.53
Project stall expenses #9064 1143
Sulnry wages & bonus 36.52 29.73
Professional charges 440 83.57
Oithers 330 2.066

1,170.49 756.92
Hotel at Banjara Hills, Hyderabad
Mulerial - 17578
Project stafl expenses - 2049
Other expenses - 7.36

- 203.63

Less:- Capilnlised during the year - 203,63

1,170.49 756.92




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes ta finaneial statemonts for the yenr ended March 31, 2019

& Investment property
Particulurs Tatal
Hs in lakls

Gross Carrying Amount
AL Aprdl 1, 2007 258.89
Additions =
Al March 31, 2018 15889
Adldivions -
At March 31, 2009 25889
Depreeiation and Impairment
Al April 1, 2007 £TY9
Charge for the year 4.39
Al March 31, 2018 1318
Chnrge for the year 439
At March 31, 2019 17.57
Mel Block
Ad March 31, 2019 241.32

245,71

At March 31, 2018

Information regarding income and expenditare af Tnvestment property:

Al March 31,2009 At March 31, 2018
R in Inkhs Rs in lakhs

Rental income derived from investment property 18.02 15.50
Direct operiling expenses {including repairs and maintenance) thal
did not generate rental income {1.00) (0.97)
Profil arising from investiment properiies before depreciation
wind indireel expenses 17.02 14.53
Liss — Dipruciation {4.39) {4.39)
Profit arising from investment properties belore indiree
EXPERSER 12.63 1. 14




The Compony's investment properties consist of a commercial property in Pune, Indin. The management has
determined that the invesiment property consist of one classes of assel — office space — based on the nuture,

charncteristics nnd risks of the proporty.
The Company has no restrictions an the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations 1o

purchase, construct or develop investmen| propertios.

As il March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, the fair values of the property is Rs. 238.89 lakhs and [ 258.89 lnkha
respectively.

These valuations are based on valuations performed by an external independent valuer at the time of acquisition o
property dated March 25, 2014

The management has considered these valuations on the basis that ihere is no materinl change in the value of

property since acquired.

Description of valuation techniques wsed and key inpuis o valuation on investmend propriies:

Vinluation lechnigue Significant unobservable lnputy

Sales comparable method Location
Size of building

Quality of bullding
Wisibility of unit
Furnishediun fumished

— .



Lemaon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes o financial statements for the year ended March 31, i)l

6. Intangible nssels

It in lnkhs
Particulnrs Software Goodwill Total
Gross Carrying Amouni
Ab April 1, 2017 42,70 - §2.70
Additions 2923 . 2233
Acquired on amalgamation (Refer note 42) - 2463 .63
Disposals = - -
Al March 31, 2018 11193 263 114.56
Additions AT186 37196
Disposals = = -
Al March 31, 2019 RLAR 263 480652
Amaortisation and impairment
Al Aprdl 1,2017 30.91 - 10,91
Amoriisation 28.99 28,99
Dhisposals . - -
At March 31, 2008 F9.4910 = 59.90
Amortisation §7.00 - B7.00
Dispasals - - -
Ad March 31, 2019 146.90 - 146.90
Mol Block
Al March 31, 2019 A36.99 1.63 13962
Al March 31, 2018 52.03 261 5465
Net book value Asat As al

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Intungible assets 139.62 54.65
- 280.64

Intangible assets under development {Saltware implementation)

&

(This space has been intentionally lft Ikl




Lemaon Tree Hofels Limited
Motes (o linancial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2019

7. Financial assets

Asal Asal
Mareh 31, 20019 March 31, 2018
s in lakhs Rs in lukhs
(i) Imvestments
Investmends af cosl
Unguoted equity sharves of subsiliary companies at cost
34,374 498 (Previous year 34,374,498) equily shares of Fleur Holcls Private Limited of Rs. 10 each Tully A4.307.20 44,307.20
paid,
| 1,869,100 (Previous year 11,869, 100) Equity shares of PSK Resorts & Hotels Private Limited of Re.l cach 269112 269,12
[ully paid
345,945 400 (Previous year 345.945,400) Equity shares of Canary Hotels Private Limited of Re. | cach fully 5224.28 522424
paid,
6,195,000 (Previous year 6,195,000 ) Equity shares of Sukhsagar Complexes Privale Limited of Rs.10 coch 2,619.63 2619.63
lully paiid,
75,000,000 { Previous year 75,000,000) Equity shures of Nightingale Hotels Private Limiled of Re.| each 931.40 93140
fully paid.
571,428 (Previous vear 571,428) Equity shares of Manakin Resorts Private Limited of Rs.10 each fully paid. 390.69 390.69
10,854,592 (Previous year: 10,854,592) Equity shares of Begonia Holels Private Limited of Re.1 each fully 48.86 48.86
pakd,
3,700,000 {Previous year 3,700,000) Equity shares of Oriole Dr Fresh Hotels Private Limited of Rs.10 each 2.64397 2,643.97
fully paid.
700,000 { Previous vear 934,580) Equity shares of Carnation Hotels Private Limited of Re.l each fully .00 9.35
paid.
45,500,668 ( Previous veur 45,500,668) Equity shares of Grey Fox Project Management Company Private 455.01 453501
Limited of Re | each fully paid.
115,000 { Previous vear 115,000) Equity shares of Dandelion Hotels Private Limited of Re.1 each fully paid. 160,54 160.54
350,000 (Previous year 350,000) Equity shares of Lemon Tree Hotel Company Private Limited of Re.| each 150 31.50
Fully paid,
00,000 { Previots year 300,000) Equity shares of Red Fox Hotel Company Private Limiled of Re.] ench 3.00 1.00
lually paid.
|, 280,200 { Previous year 1,225.209) Equity shares of Meringue Hotels Private Limited of Re. ] each fully 11,582.44 11,075.89
paid,
10,000 ( Previous year nil) Equity shares of Poplar Homestead Holding Private Limited of Rs, 10 each fully 1.00 -
paid,
10,000 (Previous year nil) Equity shares of Madder Stays Private Limited of Rs.10 each fully paid. 14010 -
10,000 (Previous year nil) Equity shares of Jessamine Stays Private Limited of Rs.1(} each fully paid. 1.00 ¥
Unquoted equity shares of associnte companies at cast
150,000 { Previous year nil) Equity shares of Hamstede Living Private Limited of Rs, 10 each fully paid. 15,00 -
340 340

340,000 ( Previous year 340,000) Equity shares of Mind Leaders Leamning Indin Private Limited of Rs.1
ench fully paid.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
MNaotes to fmancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Ungueled compulsory redeemable prefevence shares of subsidiary companies afl fnir value through
Profil and loss
350,000 { Previous year 350,000) 5% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference shares ol Carnation | lotels

Privite Limited ol Rs. 100 cach Rlly puid.® 192.98 173.37
Unguoted compulsory convertible preference shares of associate companies al cost
27,00,000 (Previous year NiI) 0.001% Compulsorily Conventible Preference shares of Hamstede Living
Private Limited of Rs. [0 each fully paid** 270,00 -
Deemed investment (equity portion) on account of interest free loan to subsidinries
Dandelion Hotels Private Limited 4.85 4,85
Meringue Hetels Private Limited 59.90 59,90
Orinle Dr Fresh Hotels Private Limited [ERIH b
Deemed investment (cquity portion) in redeemable preference shares
Sukhsagar Complexes Privale Limited T4.89 74.89
Oriole Dr Fresh Hotels Private Limited 145.56 145.56
Canary Hotels Private Limited 22,99 22,99
Carnation Hotels Private Limited 234.30 224.30
Girey Fox Project Management Company Private Limited 84,25 Bd.25
Quated mutual funds at firv value through profit and loss
23,145 units { Previous Year: nil) of Reliance liguid fund - Direct Plan Growth Plan - Growth option 1,055.85 -
Unquoted equity shares of companies other than subsidiary and associate companies at fair value
through profit and loss
2,567 (Previous Year: 2,567) equity shares of SEP Energy Private Limited ol Rs. 10 cach fully paid. 0.26 0.26
9,126 (Previous Year ; 9.126) equity shares of School of Hospliality India Private Limited of Rs.10 each 200.04 200.04
lully paid,

73,440.37 71.572.71
Aggregate book valve ol unquoled investments 72.384.52 L3771
Aggregate book value of quoled Invesiments LD33.85 -
Current 1,055.85 -
Non-Currend 72,384.52 71,5721
Total T3,440.37 71537271




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019

*The preference shares will be redeemed either at the option of the Company or at the oplion of the subsidiary at any-time afier the expiry of one year or before
expiry of len years.

fiSold 234,580 equity sharcs to Mr, Rattan Keswani during the year

Anvestment in equity shares of Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited have been pledged for term loans taken by these companies.

**The preference shares will be converted after 19 years and 364 days of their issuance. The preference share holder has the right to voluntarily convert such
CCPS al any-time before the expiry of such period.

As at As at
March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
Rs in lukhs Rs in lakhs
(ii) Loans
(unsccured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loans to employees at amortised cost 171.11 1,615.50
_ 171,11 1,615.50
Asat As al
March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(iii) Other financial assets
Security deposits (unsccured, considered good) . 1,060.52 985.58
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 222.67 154.56
Fixed deposils under lien™ 253.10 253.10
1,536.29 1.393.24

* Fixed deposits under lien includes deposits lien marked with banks against guarantees issued in favour of various Government departments.




Lempn Tree Hotels Limited
Moles 1o financial stnlements for the year ended March 31, 2019

B Deferred tax assels (nel}

As al Az
Muaceh 31,2019 March 31, 2008
B i ks Rs i Inkhs
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assety 4,285 K1 397909
Impact of expenditiere charged 1w the statement of profil
it 155 in the currenty carlier period but altawable for
Lt purposes on puyment basis - .80
Deferred tnx Hability 4,285 81 3R
Irmpact of expenditore chsrged 1o the stulement of prodil 8229 -
v laws in the currenl! earlier period but allowablz for
Lax purposes on puymenl basis
E et of unabsorbed deprecintion and business loss 1.967.64 4.599.52
Cirnfwity TS0 r52
Leave compensation 3186 240
loyally program 598 350
Provision [ conlingeney 16,28 1297
Prrowiston [or show moving invenlory 163 1075
Fxpense on neeount of lease equalbation reserve created AB4.59 43316
Security deposils 58533 53346
Lown 1o employee a3 4,52
Barrowings 14.25 15.54
Pronvision for doubifial debis and ndvances 6,19 614
Deferred Ly assel 446337 5.681.78
A. Deferred tmyx asset (oet) 177,56 1,700 88
B. MAT crdit entitlement 130122 134020
Met deferred tnx assel (nef) 2ATHTR 304214

* Considering the historical performance and luture projections, the Company his recopnised
deferred tax msset of Rs 24T8.78 lakhs as a1 March 31, 2009 As at March 31, 201K, the
Compuny s recopnised defemed tax assel on losses and other lems oaly W the exient of
deferred tax hahility and scoprdingly not recognised deferred tax asset of Rs. 3,042 14 lukbs as
o March 31, 2014

Reconciliation of tax expense and ihe aceounting profil muliplied by India’s domestic tax
vute for yenr March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008:

Mareh 31, 2009 Maorch 31, 2004

Prosfind{ b ) befiore L 454490 262758
Tux rate J RSN
T ol stabuilory income 13 rule 1,693.00 H09.35
Effect of incomes taxable ol nilflower™IAT mile {130.26) {148 58)
MAT crodil related to carlicr yeurs sevopnised in current * {1300, 26) =
DTA on waahsorbed depreciaton and busingss loss not (1. T01HE) (H03.04)
recogmsced [nst vear

| Inrecopmired tox assels () msdd other gdjustiments - (4430

Net (1, 479,40} 11331




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes 1o financinl sistements for the year ended March 31, 2019

.2 Non-Current tax assels (nel)

Asal Asal
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs in Inlhs s in lakhs
Advance Income Tax (et of provision for laation) TI1.84 970.04
TT7.84 97004




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Motes to Onanelal statements for the yenr ended Maorch 31, 2019

4, Dther non-current assets

As al Asot
March 31,2009 March 31, 2018
R in Inkhs Rs in lnkhs

Unseeured, considered good
Capilnl sdvances 195 282
Preguaid expenses (Refer note 38) 717.31 T93.84
Unamonized portion of security deposiis and loans 4,548.16 4.879.69
Total B 527342 5,701,771

R




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes {o linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

10. Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and nel realisable value)

Asal As nl
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2014
Rs in lakhs Rz in lakhs

Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) 50.01 57.64
Liguor and wine 3395 31.54
others 118.65 110.34
Total 20261 199.52
#ﬂ e =

Refer foomole to Note 15 for inventories pledged.

(This space has been imentionally left blank)




Lemon Tree Hstels Limbied
Motes to Minancial statements Tor ile vear ended Narch 31, 2009

11, Finnncial nsscls

Asal Agal
Munreh 31, 2009 hlarch 31, 2018
Hs in lalchs s o lakhs

i) Trade receivables
Tende receivables 4,066,553 206387
Trnde receivables Trom related parties

4,966,535 206387
Break-np for security details:
Tende receivalies
Unsecured, conssdered gond 4,060,538 LO63.87
Doubiful 15.95 | 5,45

494248 207082

Tmpairment Allowance {allowance for bad and doubiful debis)

Dymaba finl 1595 |5.95
15.95 |5.95
Toinl 496653 2,063 87

Mo trsde or nther receivable are due Trom directors or other ofTicers of the company either severnlly or
jolntty witly sy other person. Nor any irade or other reccivable are doe from firms of privise
companies respestively in which any dinector is a parteer, o director or a menvber,

Trade receivables arc non inicrest bearrg il are penemlly on terms of 30 0 90 days

from the date of invoice

Asal Asat
Murch 31, 2019 Murch 31, 2008
s in lakhs R in lukhs
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with anks
O cwrrent accownls 1,006.,94 47
Cash on hand T3.66 2689
160 57160

Apart from the balince shown sbove, as on March 31, 2018, the Company had Rs. 32.233.37 lakhs
in escoowy pecounl mainteined with Axis Bank on account of proceeds from IPO. Tlus amounl was
ot incliaded in e balence with banks shown above as the same was held in trist on behall of selling
sharcholders. ln current yeor, he same wiss repaid.

As al As
March 31, 201% March 31, 2018
Ry in lakhs Bs in lakhs
{iliy Lowns
Unmecnred, considered pood
Loung and advances to subsidiaries 4,717.83 1.62222

4,717.83 1,622.21




Asal Asal
Mareh 31, 2019 Muorch 31, 2018
s in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(iv) Other financial assels
Unsecured, conshdered good
Security deposits 300,68 31142

30068 3142
Others
Commission receivable - 1.68
Expenses recoverable - 1,327.73

J00.68 1,640.83
12, Oiher current nssels

As al Asul
Murch 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Ry in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Advances recoverable 349.97 27135
Unbilled revenue 732.33 2.32
Balance with statutory’ government puthorilies 266.16 33595
Prepaid expenses (Refer note 38) dd5.62 188.48
Unamortized portion of security deposits and loans 244.42 2HE.TO
Tatal 2,038.50 1,092.80

(This space has been imtentionelly left blauk)
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Lemon Tree Holels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

1.3, Share eapital

Authorised Share Capital Equity shares

MNo. of shares = in lakhs
At April 1, 2017 §9.85,50,000 99,855.00
Increase during the vear (on amalgamaltion ) 28.90,000 289,00
At March 31, 2018 1,00, 14, 40,000 100, 14000
Increase/{decrease) during the year - -
Al March 31,2019 1,00,14,40,000 1,00,144.00

£5% Redeemable Cumualative
IFreference Shares

Mo, of shares Rs in lakhs
At April 1, 2017 145,000 145.00
Inerease/{decrease) during the year . -
Al March 31, 2018 145,000 145.00
Increase/(decrease) during the year . -
Ad Mareh 31, 2019 1, 45,000 145.00

Terms/rights attached (o equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Ench holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per sharc. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled
{0 receive remaining asscts of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Issued equity eapital

Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of shares Rs in lakhs

At April 1,2007 78,12,13,033 T8.121.30
Issued during the yvear - Exercise of ESOP 2318370 231.84
Issued during the vear - other than ESOP 28,20,248 282.02
Change in shares held by ESOP trust 41,600 4.16
Al March 31, 2018 T8,63,93,251 78.639.32
Issued during the year - Exercise of ESOP 58,33,781 583.38
Change in shares held by ESOP trust (29.31,461) (293.15)
At March 31,2019 ~ 789295571 78,929.55

* excluding 29,50,893 equity shares { March 31, 2018: 19,432 shares) held by ESOP trust which hias been consolidated
in nccordance with the requirement of IND AS 110, The movement is explained below -
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3, 2019

14. Other equity
Seeurities premivm

At April 1,2017

Premium on issue of shares

Additions on ESOPs excercised
Transferred from stock options outstanding
Change in shares held by ESOP trust

At March 31,2018

Additions on ESOPs excercised (excluding transferred from stock options

outstanding)

Transferred from stock options outstanding
Change in shares held by ESOP trust

At March 31,2019

Retained earnings

Al April 1,2017
Profit for the year
Al March 31,2018
Profit for the year
Al March 31,2019

General reserye

At April 1, 2017
Increase/(decrease) during the year
Al March 31, 2018
Incrense/(decrease) during the year
Al March 31, 2019

Share-based payments

At April 1,2017

Add:- Expense for the year (Refer note 32)

Less:- fransferred to securilies premium on exercise of stock options
At March 31, 2018

Add:- Expense for the year (Refer note 32)

Less - transferred to securilies premium on exercise of stock options
At March 31, 2019

81

Rs in lakhs

8,954.37
324.33
239.22

88.39
(4.16)

9,602.16
670.88

3142
(337.12)

10,277.34

Its in lakhs

2,325.09
2,216.10

4,541.19
6,306.58

10,847.77

Rs in lakhs

3,035.24

3,035.24

3,035.24

Rs in lakhs

242.12
04.54
(£8.39)

248.26
93.16

(341.42)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2019

Capital redemption reserve

Ry in takhs

At April 1, 2017 45.00

Increase/(decrease) during the year -

At March 31, 2018 45.00

Increasef/(decrease) during the year -

At March 31, 2019 45.00

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Other reserves

Securities premium 10,277.34 9,602.16
Retained carnings 10,847.77 4,541.19
General reserve 3,035.24 3,035.24
Share-hased payments - 248.26
Capital redemption reserve 45.00 45.00
Total 24,205.35 17,471.85
Notes:

Securities premium: Securitics premium comprises of premium receievd on issue of shares

Retained earnings: Retained earnings represents balances of profit and loss at each period/year end.

General reserve: Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of nel income
at a specificd percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purposc of these transfers was to cnsure thal if a dividend
distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paidup capital of the Company for that year, then the total dividend
distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the
requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to gencral reserve has been withdrawn.

Share-hased payments: The Company has a share oplion scheme under which options to subscribe for the Company’s sharcs
have been granted to certain executives and senior employees. The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of
equily-settled share-based payments provided to employees, including key management personnel, as parl of their remuneration.
Refer to Note 32 for further details of the plan.

Capital redemption reserve: The Companies Act pravides that companies redeeming its preference shares at face value or
nominal value is required to (ransfer an amount into capital redemption reserve. This reserve can be used o issue fully paid-up
bonus shares to the sharcholders of the Company.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

15. Borrowings

Asat As al
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Non-current borrowings
Term Loans
Loans from Banks (Secured)
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer footnote 1, 2, 3 & 4 below) 1,317.51 1,980.80
RBL Bank Ltd. (Refer footnote 5 & 6 below) 3,140.25 3,715.98
Yes bank Limited (Refer footnote 7 below) - 10,872.66
HDFC Bank Limited ( Refer footnote 9, 10 & 11 below) 19,917.27 9,449.53
Vehicle loans (Refer footnote 12 below) 222,04 254.44
Loans from financial institutions
Aditya Birla Finance Limited (Refer footnote 8 below) 3,433.82 -
Total non-current horrowings 28,030.89 26,273 .41
Current maturity of long term loans
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer footnote 1, 2, 3 & 4 below) 663.29 600.20
RBL Bank Ltd. (Refer footnote 5 & 6 below) 599.95 599.95
Yes bank Limited (Refer footnote 7 below) - 687.50
HDFC Bank Limited ( Refer footnote 9, 10 & 11 below) 1,466.43 82.13
Vehicle loans (Refer footnote 12 below) 71.74 66.70
Current maturity of loans from financial institutions
Aditya Birla Finance Limited (Refer footnotc 8 below) 70.00 -
Total current maturity of loans 2,877.41 2,036.48
Less: Amount clubbed under “other current financial liabilities” (2,877.41) (2,036.48)

Net corrent borrowings
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2019

16. Provisions

Asal Asat
March 31,2019  March 31,2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for gratuity 164.55 108.41
Current 66,53 10.39
MNon-current 98.02 08.02
Provision for compensated absences 9116 70.50
Current 91.14 70.50
Mon-current -
Provision for litigations (Refer note 31) 46.59 3749
Current 46,59 3749
Morn-current = .
Tolal current 204,28 11837
Total non-current 98.02 08.02
17, Other non-current liabilities
As at Asat
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
s in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Reserve for lease equalisation 1,269.09 1,123.32
Total 1,269.09 1,123.32

e




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

18. Financial liabilities

As at As at
March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
() Short term borrowings
Cash-credit from banks (Sccured) 122.06 3,570.04
122.06 3,570.04

A The Cash credit Facility and working capital loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank is repayable on demand and carries
interest rate of 9.00% p.a. (March 31, 2018: 9.30% p.a.) and is secured by way oft

a.) Exclusive charge on all existing and [uture current assets of the borrower's hotels located at Gurgaon (city centre

new), Aurangabad, Indore, and Scctor-29, Gurgaon.
b.) Subservient charge over all existing and [uture current asscts of the Company cxcept current assets of the

Company's hotels located at Gurgaon (city centre new), Aurangabad, Indore, and Sector-29, Gurgaon on which bank
has exclusive charge.

¢) Equitable Mortgage by way of cxclusive charge on the plot of Land at Sector-29, Gurgaon owned by the
borrower. Also, exclusive charge over Moveable Fixed assets of the Hotel Property al Sector-29, Gurgaon.

B The Cash credit facility from HDFC Bank (taken over from Yes Bunk during current year) is repayable on demand
and carries interest rate of 9.95% p.a.( March 31, 2018: 9.40% p.a.) and is sccured by way of:
a) First pari passu charge on all immovable fixed assels, movable fixed assets and current assets (both present and
future) including land and building of Hotel Lemon Tree, Udyog Vihar, Hotel Lemon Tree, Pune, Hotel Lemon
Tree, Ahemdabad, Hotel Lemon Tree, Chennai, Hotel Lemon Tree, Bangalore and Red Fox Hotel, Hyderabad. The
charge for assets at Red Fox Hotel, Hyderabad has been removed before March 31, 2018.

Asat As at
March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(ii) Trade payables
Trade Payables
-Micro and small enterprises 96.75 -
-Other than Micro, small and medium enterprises 4,690.14 4,527.35

4,786.89 4,527.35




As al

Asal

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(iii) Other financial labilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 2,877.41 2,036.48
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings - 1.16
Book overdraft - 237
Other payables
-Payable for capital goods 42.21 2.89
Total 2,919.62 2,042.90
#ﬁ — = ——
19, Other eurrent labilities
As al Asat
Mareh 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs R in lakhs
Advance from customers 516.34 400.16
Deferred revenue- loyalty programme 17.12 10.97
Statutory dues 840.06 40820
Tuolal 1,373.52 - 519,33=

ﬁﬂ

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Lemun Tree Hotels Limited

Motes to financinl statements for the yenr ended March 31, 2019

20, Revenue from operations
For the year ended  For the yeor ended
Manreh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
R in lnkhs s i lakhs
Sale of produocis sod services
= Rosorm renvial 17,040,800 1493118
- Food and bevernge (excluding Fquor und wine) 2465131 2570030
- Liguor and wine .60 239.21
= Banguet rentals 158,10 4516
- Telephone and jchex 10,74 .10
- Dither Services (ineluding sérvice clarge income) 1,653.34 143123
her Crperating Hevinae
- Manigement fee 5,276.23 365423
Revenue Trom operalion 27.432.25 13,108.41
21. Oiher Income
For the year ended  For the yenr ended
Murch 31,2019 March 31, 2018
s in Tnkhs R= i lakhs

Prafil on relinguishment of rights (refer noae 4 1) /61,00 670,00
Profil on sale of Property, plant and equipment - 1.26
Rent received 1502 1550
Profil on sale of ghane/inveatment 56 -
Excess provision! credil balances wrillen back - 4.68
Miscellaneous neome 1142 13,59
Tatul 23200 0503

{THix sperce hax been tnderitionally hfl blank)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for die year ended March 31, 2009

27 Cost of food and beverages consumid

For the yonr ended  For the yeor ended
Manrch A1, 201% March 31, 2018

Rs in lakhs [t5 in lnkhs
() Consumption of fond and beyverages exclading liquor and wing
Inventory af the beginaing of the year ST.64 49.41
Add: Purchases 1,641,863 1.464.07
1,699,127 151348
Less: tnventory at e end of the year s0.00 5764
st of foad and beverige consumed 1,649.26 | 45584
(b Consumption of lguer wind wine
Inventory ol the beginning of e year I 29.14
Add: Pustelisses 115.73 1559
157.27 134,73
Less: [nventory ot the end of e year 1195 3054
Coat of Tiguor and wine consuised 123,31 10319
“Tolal 1,770.58 1.559.03

23, Employce benefily expense

For the year ended  For the yens ended
Mareh 31, 2019 Muorch 31, 2018

Its in Inkhs R i lnkhs

Saluries, wiges nnd hon 492141 4,287 28
Contribation to provident fund and other fumds 219,45 186 57
Share based payments 1o employces 23,16 9.5
Clpatudiy expenie 3n.a4 3im
Leave compensalion ExXpeoscs 0.4 .52
Stal} wellre gxpensey 470,38 48442
Tatal 5.764.88 5,083.36
LS

{This sprece has been smtemtionafly fft blank)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes Lo fnancial statements lor the year ended March 31, 2019

24. Other exprenses

Faor the year ended

For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rsin lakhs Rs in lakhs
Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, pravisions and athers 642.28 653.11
Power and fuel 2,189.36 1,909.03
Guest transportation 36246 379.73
Spu cxpenses 46.16 42.21
Subscription charges 43,42 4329
Repair and maintcnance
- Buildings 270.64 262.55
- Plant and machinery 552.09 405.30
- Others 169.89 167.56
Rent 1,959.60 1,763.54
License fues 187.30 174.74
Rales and taxes 387,99 307.43
Tnsurance 62.99 41.41
Commuanication costs 569.58 539,23
Printing and stationery 118,88 122.93
Traveling and conveyance 129.20 101.54
Vehicle running and maintenance 78.69 81.85
Advertisement and business promotion 111.18 150.12
Architect and design fee 665,83 839.07
Commission -other than sole selling agent 1,004.05 611.22
Sccurity and cleaning expenses 52534 418.19
Membership and subscriptions 20.62 18.95
Legal and professional fees 463.65 475.24
Freight and cartage 15.62 13.57
Donations * 3.90 0.07
Loss on sale of praperty, plant and equipment 0,82 =
Payment to auditor (Refer note below) 72.00 42.00
Miscellaneous expenses 38.00 88.34
Taoltal 10,69 154 9,652.22
Paymend to auditer
for statutory audit fees 41.00 41.00
for limited review 30.00 .
for tax audit 1.00 1.00
72,00 42.00
* Details of CSR expenditure: Far the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 Macch 31, 2018
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 387 s
(b) Amounl spent during the year ending on March 31, 2019: Tn cash Yel to be paid in cash

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 2 -

ii)  On purposes other than (i) above 190 -
(¢) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2018: In cash Yel o be paid in cash

i) Construclion/acquisition of any asset
1) On purposes other than (i) above

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Leman Tree Hotels Limited

Notes fo Minancinl sfatcoents for the year ended March 3, 2019

25, Finanee cosly

For the yenr ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 Mirch 31, 2018
R in Inlkhs Rs in |nkha
Interest
- o berm loans from banks 188741 2,70539
« o loans from others 164.29 283,55
- on yehicle loans 57 14.73
- o oillser coedit (aeilities from banks 20148 22563
- TN ITICHAE 1 0.56 .03
[epayment charges - 4103
Bank charges (including conmmission encredil card collection) 20048 150.49
Toinl AT 3 A428.85
26. Finance income
For the year coded  For (he year ended
Murch 31, 2019 March 31, 201R
5 in tabhs R in lakhs
luterest Income [rom fnanclal asscls at amortived cost ©
- Bank Deposits 29,00 2k.64
- Interest others 1778 A55.064
Fair value gain on mvestment al fair value through profit or loas 99 -
Ineres b income tax refund BE62 .
Total 27339 524.2%
27. Deprecistion and amortization expense
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
s in lnkhs s in lakhs
Depriciation of imngible assels 189236 194330
Amoriization of infangible nsets H7.00 2899
Depreciation on investment properties 4.39 439
Totul 1.263.75 1 976,68




Lemon Tree Holels Limited
Motes o financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019

28, Enralngs per shave (Baaic and Diluted)

Hasic BPS nmounts arc caleulited by dividing the prafit for the year atiribwiable to cquity hokders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares austanding during the year.

Diluled EPS amounts are calculaied by dividing the profit sitributable fo equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number ol Bquily shares outstanding during Uhe year phux the wighled average mumber of Equity shares thut would be (ssued on
conversion of all the diutive potential Equity shares into Equity. shires. The dilutive palential equity shares are adjustid for the
procecds receivable had the equity shares been actusily {ssused ut faie value {ie the overnge market value of the outstanding equity
shares’, Dilutive padential equity shases are deemed converted a3 of the beginning of the period, unless issued ol o later date
Dilutive potentinl equity shires are determined independently for each pertod presented.

The lollowing reflects the income wnd lare data used bn the basic snd diluted EPS competafjgns

For the year For the yoar ended
Marel 31, 2019 Murch 31, 2008

Prafil attribinable o eguity holders { for basic pnd diluted) (s in lnkhe} 6324.30 231425
Weighted Average Number of Equily Shares (for busic and diluted)* 789,680,232 784,588,452
.50 028

Basic pnd Diluted EPS

® The weighted aversge mumber of shares takes into accaunt the weighted wverage effect of changes in shire transsctions during the
year. The shares of the company has been lsted on BSE Limited snd Nationa) Stock Exchange of India Limited with effect from

Apeil 9, 2018

{This apace hex been intentionaily feft bhank)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

29.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the diselosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a materinl adjustment to the carrying amount of assels or liabilities affected in

future periods.
Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has taken certain land and land and building on long term lease basis, The lease agreements
generally have an escalation clause. These leases are generally non-cancellable, The Company has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life/ remaining economic life of the property and the fair value of the asset, that it
does not have all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the

confracts as operating leases,

Further, the Company based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the respective agreements decided
that wherever the escalations (generally 15% every 3 years or 20% every 4 years) are aligned to the average
expected general inflation of the lease term period, operating lease payments are not required to be provided on
a straight-line basis over the lease term as an expense in the statement of profit and loss and in other cases
(including structured payment terms), operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis over the

lease term in the statement of profit and loss.

Estimates and assumplions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about fulure developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising thal are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both eurrent and future periods,

Fair value measurement of linancial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheel cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using other valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 34 for further disclosures.

Further, the management has estimated the expected future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset of loans given to subsidiaries which is repayable on demand based on the financial position of the
respective Subsidiaries and repayment period of the borrowings taken by these Subsidiaries.

In case there is a change in original estimated repayment period, amount received over book value of such loans
or advances is adjusted from Deemed Investment.




Lemon Tree Holels Limited
Notes to financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Taxes

Till March 31, 2018, considering the history of past tax losses, the Company recognised deferred tax assels
(including MAT credit) to the extent of probability that taxable profit will be generated in future against which
the deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses can be utilised.
Accordingly, it was considered prudent to recognize the deferred tax assets only to the extent of deferred tax
linbilities. Now, the Company is reasonably certain based on the future projections that the Company will be
able to generate taxable profit against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unabsorbed
depreciation and tax losses can be utilised and therefore has recognised deferred tax asset of Rs 2,478.78 lakhs

as at March 31, 2019,

i




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

30. Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit, The level of benefits
provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The fund has the form of a trust and it is
poverned by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equal number of employer and employee representatives. The
Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment stralegy.
The Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The
Company makes provision of such gratuity liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the

Projected unit credit method.

R, I lakhs
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Benelil Linbility
Gratuity plan 164.55 108.41
Total 164,55 10841
Risk analysis

The Company is exposed to a number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefits plans and management estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:
s Investment risk
The most of the Indian defined benefit plans are funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India. Company
does not have any liberty to manage the fund provided to Life Insurance Corporation of India.
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference
to Government of India bonds for Company’s Indian operations, IF the returm on plan asset is below this rate, it
will create a plan deficit.
» Interest risk
A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.
« Longevity risk/life expectancy
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. Increases in the life expectancy of
the plan participants will increase the plan liability.
o Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the [uture salaries of plan
participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability,

Each year, the Board of Trustees reviews the level of funding in the Gratuity plan. Such a review includes the asset —
liability matching strategy and investment risk management policy. The Board of Trustees decides its contribution

based on the result of this annual review,
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The major caregories of plan assels of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows.

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Ungquoted investments:
Assel invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown
below:

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discounl rate:
Pension plan 6.60% 7.00%
Future salary increases:
Pension plan 5.00% 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners: Years Years
Pension plan
Male 60 60
Female 60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2019 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:

Ry in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2019 2019 2019 2019
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 19 decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit
obligation 4.06 4,33 4.35 4.15
Rs in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018 2018 2018 2018
Assumpiions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit
obligation 4.76 5.03 5.08 4.89

B
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of

the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Ry i lakhs
Duration (Years) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
| 213.56 159.80
2 32.59 28.65
3 26.79 25.04
4 18.71 20.19
5 14.75 14.13
Above 5 42,16 48.05
Total expected payments 348.56 295.86

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 2 years
{(March 31, 2018; 3 years).

Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has entered into operating leases on hotel buildings, office premises, stafT hostels and
others. These are generally cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms
except for few properties (including hotel properties at Indore, Aurangabad, Gurgaon, New Delhi,
Hyderabad (Banjara Hills) and Chandigarh.) The lease for the hotel property al Indore, Aurangabad,
Gurgaon, New Delhi, Hyderabad (Banjara Hills) and Chandigarh are non-cancellable for a period of
twenty-nine, twenty-two, thirty, twenty-seven, thirty and sixty years respectively.

The Company has recognised the following expenses as rent in the statement of profit & loss towards
minimum lease payment.

Rs, in lakhs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Lease Rent on Hotel Properties 1,978.13 1,777.29
Rent on Office Premises 47.41 39.17
Rent of staff hostel/Others 121.36 121.82
Total 2,146.90 1,938.28

6
i



Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at year end are as follows:

Rs. in fakhs

Particulars

As al
March 31,2019

Asal
March 31, 2018

Minimum Lease Payments :

Not later than one year 1,396.51 1,372.27
Later than one year but not later than five years 5,991.76 5,789.60
Later than five years 47,328.37 48,941.83
Total 54,716.64 56,103.70

h. Commilments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for March 31, 2019 Rs. 360.79

lakhs (March 31, 2018 Rs. 3,171.57 lakhs)

c. Contingent linbilities

Legal claim contingency Rs. in lakhs
As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Service fax 113.55 130.06
Luxury tax 36.00 36.00
Total 149.55 166.06

The Company’s pending litigations above pertains to proceedings pending with Service tax and other
authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent linbilities where applicable, in its
financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings lo have a
materially adverse effect on its financial statements.

(d) During the current year, the Company has received favorable order from Honorable High Court of Delhi
(HC) in an ongoing case wherein the Company had received show cause notice from Collector of
Stamps, Delhi (‘Department’) for non-payment of stamp duty as per Indian Stamp Act, 1899 on right to
use the land given by Delhi International Airport (P) Ltd. (DIAL) under the Development Agreement

dated May 25, 2009 (‘DA").

(3
Al




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(¢) During the earlier year, the Company has taken land on lease from one of the subsidiary companies for

(0

which South Delhi Municipal Corporation (‘the Authority') has raised demand of Rs. 68.20 lakhs (for
the financial Years 2010-11 to financial years 2013-2014) towards annual value in respect of the hotel
property situated in Hospitality District, Aerocity. Considering that the area occupied by the Company is
41% of the hotel property, it has made provision of Rs. 46.59 lakhs in this regard.

Mote on Provident Fund:

Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, the Company found numerous interpretation
issues and thus is in the process of evaluating the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in the
case of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir vs Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (I1), West Bengal in
relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of “basis wages” of the relevant
employees for the purpose of determining contribution to provident lund under the Employees Provident
Fund & Miscellancous provisions Act, 1952,

(g) Financial guaraniees

The Company has issued financial guarantees to banks on behalf of and in respect of term loan facilities
availed by its group companies for consiruction of new hotel project. In accordance with the policy of
the Company (refer note 2.2(p)) the Company has designated such guarantees as “Insurance Contracts’
and classified them as contingent liabilities, Since these financial guarantees are an integral element of
debts held by entities, hence, these have not been accounted for separately.

Accordingly, there are no assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet under these contracts.
Refer below for details of the financial guarantees issued:

Rs. in fakhs

Loan
Financial guarantees Outstanding

Asal Asat Asal

March 31,2019 | March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018

Canary Hotels Private Limited 2,174.28 2,350.00 2,350.00
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited 13,037.86 8,605.00 §,605.00
Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited 3,535.79 4,300.00 4,300.00
Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited 2,432.24 2,500,00 2,500.00
Nightingale Hotels Private Limited 5,200.41 5,302.00 6,000.00
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 32,245.85 18,000.00 18,000.00
Meringue Hotels Private Limited 19,811.08 22,000,00 22,000.00
Total 78,437.51 63,057.00 63,905.00

ey 6
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to finanecial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

33. Related Party Transactions

Names of related parties
Subsidiary Company - Begonin Holels Private Limited

- Carnation Hotels Private Limited

- Celsia Hotels Private Limited

- Fleur Hotels Private Limited

- Dandelion Hotels Private Limited

- Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited

- Lemon Tree Hotel Company Private Limited
- Manakin Resorts Private Limited

- Meringue Hotels Private Limited

- PSK Resorts & Hotels Private Limited

- Nightingale Hotels Private Limited.

- Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited

- Red Fox Hotel Company Private Limited

- Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited

- Pelican Facilities Management Private Limited
{upto 20™ June 2017)

- Grey Fox Project Management Company
Private Limited

- Canary Hotels Private Limited

- Valerian Management Services Private Limited

- Ophrys Hotels Private Limited

- lora Hotels Private Limited

- Inovoa Hotels and Resorts Limited

- Bandhav Resorts Private Limited

-Hamstede Living Private Limited
(from December 6, 2018 to March 12, 2019)

-Poplar Homestead Holdings Private Limited

-Madder Stays Private Limited

-Jessamine Stays Private Limited

Key Management Personnel - Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani (Chairman
and Managing Direclor)

-Mr.Rattan Keswani (Deputy Managing Director)
-Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal( Independent
Director) (upto April 1, 2017)
- Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka (Independent
Director) (Resigned w.e.f 1" April, 2019)
-Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria( Director)
-Mr. Niten Malhan {Director)(upto August 13,
2018)
-Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf (Director){(from August
13, 2018)
-Mr. Sachin Doshi (Director) (upto August 1,
2017)
-Mr., Pradeep Gupta (Director) (from June 15,
2017 to December 5, 2017)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes to financial statements for the yvear éended March 31, 2019

Relatives of key management personnel

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key
management personnel or their relatives

Enterprise in which director is common

Associate

- Mr. Willem Albertus Hazeleger (Director)
(from August 9, 2017)

- Ms. lla Dubey (Director) (upto May 31, 2017)
- Mr. Adityn Madhav Keswani{Director)

- Mr. Pradeep Mathur ( Independent Director)
(from December 5, 2017)

- Mr Paramartha Saikia (Independent Director)
(from June 15, 2017)

- Ms. Freyan Jamshed Desai (Independent
Director) (from June 15, 2017)

- Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha(lndependent Director)
(from June 15, 2017)

- Mr. Arvind Singhania (Independent Director)
(from June 15, 2017)

-Mrs. Sharanita Keswani relative of Mr. Aditya
Madhav Keswani

- Spank Management Services Privale Limited

- Alisha Retail Private Limited
- Varun Beverages Limited

- Mind Leaders Leaming India Private Limited
{w.e.l June 6, 2017)

- Pelican Facilities Management Private Limited
(w.e.f. June 20, 2017)

- Hamstede Living Private Limited (w.e.[. March
13, 2019)

Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during

the year:
Chief Financial Officer : Mr. Kapil Sharma
Company Secretary : Mr. Nikhil Sethi




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related
parties for the relevant year

Ry, in lakhs
Transactions with Related Year Subsidiaries Key Relatives of | Enterprises | Associale | Enlerprise
Parly Ended Managemen| Key owned or in which
Personnel | Managemend | sipnificantly Director is
Personnel inMuenced common
by key
management
personnel or
their
relatives

Reimbursement of expenses
paid on behall of parly
Fleur Hotels Private Limited | 31-Mar-19 5.48 - - 2 . =

31-Mar-18 273 - - = =
Hyacinth Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 1.82 - - - a
Limited

31-Mar-18 293 - - . . =
Begonia Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 0.53 - - = =
Limited

31-Mar-18 9.23 . - - - -
Carnation Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 7.89 . . - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 7.83 - - - - -
Meringue Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 17.37 - = - E =
Limited

31-Mar-18 .63 - - - . -
Others 31-Mar-19 3.02 - - - - -

31-Mar-18 .12 - - - - -
Amount Received by the
Party on behall of the
company
Fleur Hotels Private Limited | 31-Mar-19 3.94 - - - - -

31-Mar-18 - - - - - -
Celsia Hotels Private Limited | 31-Mar-19 1.60 - - -

31-Mar-18 - = - - = =
Nightingale Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 1.08 - . . - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 - - - - -




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Transactions with Related Year Subsidiaries Key Relatives of | Enterprises | Associate | Enlerprise
Party Ended Management Key owned or in which
Personnel Management | significantly Director is
Personnel influenced COMmon
by key
management
personnel or
their
relatives

Inovoa Holels & Resorts 31-Mar-19 0.95 - - a
Limited 3

31-Mar-18 - < =
Canary Hotels Privale 31-Mar-19 0.28 - = — -
Limited

31-Mar-18 =
Amount Received by the
Company on behalfl of the
Party
Begonia Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 3.50 - - - =
Limited

31-Mar-18 - - = - - =
Hyacinth Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 3.38 - - - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 - 2 A -
Sukhsagar Complexes Private | 31-Mar-19 0.88 - . . =
Limited

= 31-Mar-18 . - = = 5

Others 31-Mar-19 0.13 - - - - -

31-Mar-18 - = 5 o 5 =
Loans (given)
Meringue Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 4, 310,00 - - - - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 800,00 - = = =
Canary Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 - - - = .
Limited 105.00

31-Mar-18 38100 - a - : E
Carnation Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 78.00 - - - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 118.00 - . . -

() Je




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019

Transactions with Related Year Subsidiarics Key Relatives of | Enterprises | Associate | Enlerprise
Party Ended Management owned or in which
Personnel | Management | significantly Director is
Personnel influenced COmmon
by key
management
personnel or
their
relatives

Sukhsagar Complexes Private | 31-Mar-19 300,00 - - =
Limited

3|-Mar-18 288.00 - = .
Dandelion Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 7.00 - - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 49,51 . - i
Oithers 31-Mar-19 100.61 - - = =

31-Mar-18 80.22 - - - = =
Repayment of Loan Given
Dandelion Holels Private 31-Mar-19 - - - B =
Limited

31-Mar-18 1,099.61 - = . =
Meringue Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 1, 150,00 - - -
Limited.

31-Mar-18 9,639.65 - - E = =
Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels 31-Mar-19 60,00 - - - - .
Private Limited

31-Mar-18 857.95 - - = =
Oihers 31-Mar-19 595,00 - = F =

31-Mar-18 82124 - . z =
Repayment of Loan (aken
Patanjali Govind Keswani 31-Mar-19 - - - = =

31-Mar-18 - 589.97 B E =
Services obtained(Net ol
TS}
Spank Management Services | 31-Mar-19 - - - - - -
Private Limited

31-Mar-18 - - - 240,13 . -
Grey Fox Project 31-Mar-19 465.36 - = - = =

Manngement Company

(B e
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Transactions with Related Year Subsidiarics Key Relatives of | Enterprises | Associale | Enferprise
Party Ended Managemenl Key owned or in which
Personnel | Management | sipnilicantly Director is
Personnel infMuenced Common
by key
management
personnel or
their
relntives
Private Limited =
31-Mar-18 230,55 - - . = =
Valerian Management 31-Mar-19 65.34 - -
services Private Limited -
3i-Mar-18 47.84 - - -
Lease Rent Paid
Hyacinth Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 199,10 - -
Limited i
i|-Mar-18 174.74 - - -
Rent Received =—
Hamstede Living Private 31-Mar-19 - - - - 1.86 -
Limited
31-Mar-18 - - - - - -
Sale of Services s
Hamstede Living Private 3i-Mar-19 - - - - 1.80 .
Limited
31-Mar-18 - - - - .
Purchase of goods
Alisha Retail Pvt Ltd 31-Mar-19 - = 335
31-Mar-18 - - - - -
Varun Beverages Limited 31-Mar-19 - - - - 4.80
31-Mar-18 = = - = -
Reimbursement of expenscs
incurred on company’s
behall
Hyacinth Hotels Private 3i-Mar-19 297.45 - - - -
Limited.
31-Mar-18 281.13 - - ~ =
Celsia Hotels Private Limited | 31-Mar-19 - - - .
31-Mar-18 088 - . -
Remuneration paid
Mr. Patanjali G Keswani 31-Mar-19 - 338,56 - - -

(8- g
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Transactions with Related Year Subsidiaries Key Relatives of | Enlerprises | Associale | Enterprise
Party Ended Management Key owned or in which
Personnel Management | signilicanily Direclor is
Personnel infMuenced common
by key
munagement
personnel or
their
relatives
31-Mar-18 - 284,13 - = -
Mr. Kapil Sharma 3l-Mar-19 - 11647 # = =
31-Mar-18 - 7503 - =
Mr. Nikhil Sethi 31-Mar-19 - 44,45 - B =
31-Mar-18 - 29.95 - - = -
Silting Fee paid
Mr. Arvind Singhania 31-Mar-19 - 0.6 i %
31-Mar-18 - 0.60 - = -
Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha J1-Mar-19 - 1.00 - - 5 -
31-Mar-18 - 1.00 - = = -
Ms. Freyan Jamshed Desai 31-Mar-19 = .80 - - -
31-Mar-18 - 1.00 . . = =
Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka | 31-Mar-19 - 1.20 - = =
31-Mar-18 . 0.80 - - & =
Mr Paramartha Saikia 31-Mar-19 - 1.00 - - - -
31-Mar-18 - 1.00 - = 5 =
Mr. Pradeep Mathur 31-Mar-19 - 1.00 - - =
31-Mar-18 - (.60 - = =0
Mr, Pradecp Gupta 31-Mar-19 - - . - - -
31-Mar-18 - 0.40 - - = =
Fees for professional
services
Mrs. Sharanita Keswani 31-Mar-19 - - = 3 5 B
31-Mar-18 - 21,00 - -
Interest Received
Grey Fox Project 31-Mar-19 0.97 - = = 2 S
Management Company
Privale Limited

L
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Transactions with Related Year Subsidiaries Key Relatives of | Enterprises | Associate Euterprisc__
Party Ended Management Key owned or in which
Personnel | Management | significantly Director is
Personnel influenced COMMONn
by key
management
personnel or
their
relatives
Private Limited
e ~ | 31-Mar-18 0.81 - 2 : . _

Carnation Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 47.05 2 - . £ . a
Limited

31-Mar-18 57.50 - - - 5 =
Hamestede Living Private 31-Mar-19 0.07 - - = | E =
Limited

31-Mar-18 - - i = =
Guarantees given for Loan
Taken By
Fleur Holels Private Limited | 31-Mar-19 18,000.00 - - - - -

31-Mar-18 18,000.00 - - - B %
Canary Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 2,350.00 = - - - -
Limited A

31-Mar-18 2,350.00 - - = =
Hyacinth Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 8,605.00 - # = =
Limited

31-Mar-18 8,605.00 - - - - -
Sukhsagar Complexes Private | 31-Mar-19 4,300.00 - & - 4 5
Limited

31-Mar-18 4,300.00 - - - - -
Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels 31-Mar-19 2,500.00 - - - -
Private Limited

31-Mar-18 2,500.00 - - & 7 =
Nightingale Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 5,302.00 - - - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 6,000.00 - A = H
Meringue Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 22,000.00 - - - > =
Limited

31-Mar-18 22,000.00 - - = -
Subscription to Share
Capital
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Transactions with Related Year Subsidiaries Key Relatives of | Enferprises | Associate | Enlerprise
Parly Ended Managemenl Key owned or in which
Personnel | Management | sipnilicantly Director is
Personnel influenced cOmimon
by key
management
personnel or
their
relntives

Meringue Hotels Private j1-Mar-19 506.55 - - -
Limited in Equity Shares

31-Mar-18 11,075.89 - - - - -
Oriole Dr Fresh Hotels 31-Mar-19 - . - .
Private Limited in Equity
Shares

3i-Mar-18 2,623.95 - = E =
Sukhsagar Complexes Private | 31-Mar-19 - = - T =
Limited in Equity Shares

31-Mar-18 1,094.97 - - - - -
Hamstede Living Private 31-Mar-19 - - 15.00 -
Limited in Equity Shares

31-Mar-18 - - - - -
Humstede Living Private 31-Mar-19 - - - - 270.00 -
Limited in Preference shares

31-Mar-18 - - = - E =
Canary Hotels Privaie 31-Mar-19 - - 5 = - =
Limited in Equity Shares

31-Mar-18 3,400,00 - . - =
Others 31-Mar-19 .00 - - - - -

31-Mar-18 644 82 - - - 340 -
Sale of Invesiment of
subsidiaries
Pelican Facilities 3i-Mar-19 - - - s = -
Management Private Limited

31-Mar-18 - = - - 1.00 -
Carmnation Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 2.35 - - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 - - = - - -
Redemption of Preference
Shares
Canary Hotels Private il-Mar-19 - - = = = =

{1
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Transactions with Related Year Subsidiaries Key Relatives of | Enlerprises | Associale | Enlerprise
Party Ended Managemeni Key owned or in which
Personnel | Managemenl | significantly Director is
Personnel influenced commaon
by key
management
personnel or
their
relatives

Limiied =il

Ji-Mar-18 3,020,00 - = E B
Sukhsagar Complexes Private | 31-Mar-19 - - = = =
Limited

31-Mar-18 T70.00 - - - = -
Grey Fox Project 31-Mar-19 - - B . -
Manngement Company
Private Limited

31=Mar-18 420,00 - - = =
Criole Dr Fresh Hotels 31-Mar-19 - - = - E =
Private Limited

31-Mar-18 1,791.79 - . = =
Management Fees Received
{including GST)
Celsia Hotels Private Limited | 31-Mar-19 291.62 - - = - %

31-Mar-18 261,81 - - = = :
Fleur Hotels Private Limited. | 31-Mar-19 311101 - - - - -

31-Mar-18 1,806.25 - = = = =
Hyacinth Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 635.97 - - . - -
Limited.

31-Mar-18 540.33 - - - : =
lora Hotels Private Limited, 31-Mar-19 - - - - " -

31-Mar-18 755.20 - - = -
Nightingale Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 273.82 - . 2 =ang ||
Limited

31-Mar-18 224.12 - - - - .
Canary Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 90.26 - - - - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 - - - - -
Sukhsagar Complexes Private | 31-Mar-19 86.93 - - - - -
Limited




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Marceh 31, 2019

Transactions with Related Year Subsidiarics Key Relatives of | Enferprises | Associale | Enlerprise
Parly Ended Managemeni Key owned or in which
Personnel | Management | significantly Director is
Personnel infuenced common
by key
management
persannel or
their
relatives

31-Mar-18 =
Others 31-Mar-19 JB9.33 - -

31-Mar-18 502,77 - = - =
Training Fees Pald(Net of
TDS)
Mind Leaders Learning Indin | 31-Mar-19 - -
Private Limited 108.27

31-Mar-18 - - - 100.27 =
Ralances outstanding at the
year end
Meringue Hotels Privale 3i-Mar-19 3,971.78 - = - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 800.00 - = = = -
Fleur Hotels Private Limited | 31-Mar-19 2,480.86 - T = =

31-Mar-18 69.52 - - 5 i =
Begonin Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 2182 - - = =
Limited.

31-Mar-18 10,69 - - - -
Camation Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 265.57 - - - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 696,47 - - - = =
Hyacinth Hotels Private 3l-Mar-19 3,734.84 = - - - -

| Limited.

31-Mar-18 3,828,583 - - - - -
lnovoa Hotels & Resorls 31-Maor-19 28.73 - - - - -
Limited

31-Mar-18 13.37 - - - - -
Ohers 3]-Mar-19 621.80 0.95 - = 6.44 = ]

31-Mar-18 239,95 292 - 13.85 -
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties at the year-end are unsecure and settlement occurs in cash,
For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables
relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2018: Nil). This assessment is undertaken
each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.

Commitmenis with relnted partics
The Company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

34, Fair value measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and
provides additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity

instrument

2.  Financial Assets (other than equity investment/ deemed invesiment in subsidiaries and
associates carvied at cost)

£y in lakhs
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
FVTPL A“‘c‘?;"“d FVTPL | Amortised Cost
Financial Assels
Trade Receivables - 4 966,53 = 2.063.87
Security Deposits (non-current) - 1,060.52 . 985.58
Security Deposits (current) 300.68 342
Fixed Deposits under Lien = 253.10 - 253.10
Commission receivable 1.68
Other current {inancial assets - 1,327.73
= 1.0
Cash and Cash Equivalents AR - 571.60
Interest acerued on deposit with - 222.67 ) 154.56
banks
Loans (non-current) s 171.11 - 1,615.50
Loans (current) 4,717.83 1,622.22
Investments 144913 - 373.67 -
Total Financial Assets (other
than equity investment/ 1,449.03 | 12,733.04 | 37367 8.907.26
deemed investment in
subsidiaries carried at cosi)
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Nole: The financial assets above do not include investments in subsidiaries and associates which are
measured at cost in accordance with Ind AS 101 and Ind AS 27.

b. Financial Linbilities

Rs in lakhs
March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
= Amortised . Amortised
FVTPL Cost FVTPL Cosl

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings(Non =
Current) 28,030.89 - 26,273.41
Borrowings( Current) 122,06 3,570.04
Trade Payables - 4,786.89 - 4,527.35
Other Current -
Financial Liabilities 2,919.62 3 2,042.90
Total Financial
Liabilities 35,859.46 36,413.70

¢. Fair value measurement hierarchy lor asscts and liabilities

Fair value measarement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured al fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as

follows:

i} Level I
Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

il) Level 2
Inpuls are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level | for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants,

b




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and

liabilities:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at air value

Ry, in lakhs

March 31, 2019
Level | Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
Financial investments as FVTPL 2 -
Unquoted equity instruments = ol 200.30 200.30
Investment in compulsorily
redeemable preference shares of ~ 192.98 192.98
subsidiaries
Investment in Quoted Mutual Funds 1,055.85 B . 1,055.85
Total 1,055.85 - 393.28 1,449.13
March 31,2018
Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial investments as FVTPL
Unguoted equity instruments = ) 200.30 20030
Investment in compulsorily
redeemable preference shares of = e 173.37 173.37
subsidiaries
Taotal - 4 373.67 373.67

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

«  The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a DCF model. The
valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including
forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various
estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of

fair value for these unquoted equity investments.

e  The fair values of compulsorily redeemable preference shares of subsidiaries have been estimated

using the fair valuation by independent valuer. The valuation requires management

1o make

certain assumptions about the interest rate, including forecast cash flows, discount rale, credit
risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably
assessed and are used in management’s estimate of fair value for these unquoted equily

investments.
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The significant unobservable inpuls used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2019 and 31

March 2018 are as shown below:

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Valuation Signilicant Range
technigue unobservable inpuis {weighted average)
FVTPL fair values of DCF method | Discount Rate 31 March 2019: 11.22% - 12.12%
compuiisorily redesmabls 31 March 2018: 11.22% - 12.12%
preference shares of
subsidiaries
Expected dividends 31 March 2019: 0% - 5%

31 March 2018: (% - 5%
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35. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to
support its operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company.The
Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and proceduse and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and
risk objectives, The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are
summarised as below:

Markel risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Muctuate
because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises of interest rate risk., Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company
expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable

interest rates.
Rs. In lakhs
March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Variable rate borrowings 30,730.57 31,558.78
Fixed rate borrowings 299.79 321.14

Inferest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before

tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase/decrease in basis points Effect on profit before tax
Rs. In lakhs

31-March-19

Rs 50 171.29

Rs -50 (171.29)
31-March-18

Rs 50 171.44

Rs =30 (171443

Foreign currency risk

f & 6
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Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits with
banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

{(n) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of number of days and
amount,

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 1 1. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

Ry, in lakhs

Ageing 31-March-19 3-March-18
Not due - -
0-6( days past due 3,508.75 1,130.09
61120 days past due 509.18 317.37
121-180 days past due 375.98 161.68
180-365 days past due 234.32 307.95
365-730 days past due 33830 97.20
more than 730 days - 49.08

4,966,53 2,063.87

Provision for doubtful debis (including provision for expecied credit loss)

Rs. in lakhs
Ageing 31-March-19 31-March-18
Not due

0-60 days past due : -
61-120 days past due . -
121-180 days past due - -
180-365 days past due z -
more than 365 days 15.95 15.95

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debis — Trade receivables (including provision for expected
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eredil loss)

Ry. in lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision at beginning 15.95 15,62
Addition during the year - 0.33
Reversal during the year . -
Utilised during the year - -
Provision at closing 15.95 15.95

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company's maximum
exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2019 and March 31,2018 is the

carrying amount as given in Note | |
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Liguidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of Tunding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans, The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has
aceess to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled
over with existing lenders. As at March 31, 2019, the company had available Rs. 2,430 lakhs (March

31, 2018; 2,430 lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on

contractual undiscounted payments.

Rs. fn lakhs
On demand Lo T3 i 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
manths monihs
Year ended
March 31, 2019
Borrowings 122.06 465.56 2411.85 19,007.95 9.022.94 31,030.36
Trade and other
payables 4,786.89 . . - 4,786.89
Other Financial
Liabilities 4221 - ; £ 42.21
4,951.16 465.56 2.411.85 19,007.95 9,022.94 35.859.46
Year ended
March 31, 2018
Borrowings 3,570.04 321.24 1,776.83 17,121.25 0.090.57 31,879.93
Trade and other
payables 4,527,315 - - - - 4,527.35
Other Financial .
Liabilitics 6.42 - - - - G6.42
8,103.81 321.24 1,776.83 17,121.25 0,090.57 36,413,770
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36. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capilal includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital manapement is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company monilors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt.The Company inclodes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. fn lakhs
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Borrowings (other than preference share) 11.030.36 11.879.93
Trade payables (Note 18) 4,786.89 4,527.35
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) 1.040.60 571.60
Hht ot 34,776.65 35,835.68
2olaicapital 103,134,90 96,111.17
Capital and net debi 137,915.55 131,946.85
Gearing ratio 25% 27%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things,
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings

that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and

borrowing in the current year.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year
ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.
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37. Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a
single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind
AS 108 - “Operating Segments".

Information aboul geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as
per the requirements of Ind AS 108 —"Operating Segments”.

Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue

38. Prepaid expenses includes prepaid conversion charges of Rs. 603.98 lakhs in respect of land
taken for lease of 60 years for construction of hotel building. The Company has amortized Rs. 10.07
lakhs (Previous year: March 31, 2018 Rs. 10,07 lakhs) during the year in accordance with its
accounting policy of amortizing the conversion charges over the period of lease as mentioned in Note
2.2 (j) above. The balance amount of Rs. 502.48 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rs. 512.55 lakhs) has been
included in note 9 and note 12 under ‘Prepaid expenses’.

39. During an earlier year, the Company had issued equity shares to APG Strategic Real Estate
Pool N.V. (‘the investor') and the investor had also acquired 42.02% (March 31, 2018 42.02%) stake
of Fleur Hotels Private Limited (a subsidiary Company). As per the Shareholder's agreement, all new
hotel projects will first be offered to the subsidiary. There are no other significant commitments to the
investor.

40, During earlier years, the Company had entered into a sub license agreement with M/s
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) as part of Infrastructure development
and services agreement entered between M/s Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited and Delhi International
Airport Limited (DIAL) to develop a hotel at Aero City, New Delhi for an initial term of 27 years,
extendable at the option of the Company for an additional period of 30 years provided DIAL gets the
extension from Airport Authority of India. DIAL is commilted to take over the building at *Book
values’, as defined in the aforesaid agreement in case the agreement is not extended further.

41. During the year, the Company has received Rs. 861 lakhs towards relinquishment of right
according to settlement agreement entered into with the Developer with respect to purchase of certain
parts of built-up structure along with proportionate interest in the land to establish and operate a four-
star hotel at Jaipur with penalty as per Honorable High Court of Delhi (HC) order.

"®e
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42, Scheme of Amalgamalion

During the previous year ended March 31, 2018, the Mational Company Law Tribunal approved the
order of scheme of amalgamation dated December 22, 2017 in respect of amalgamation of Aster
Holels & Resorts Private Limited, HeadStart Institute Private Limited and PRN Management Services
Private Limited ( the Transferor Companies) with Lemon Tree Hotels Limited and the scheme was
effective from December 28, 2017, Investment had been nullified w.e.f. the Appointed date i.e. April
01, 2017.The Company had made the allotment of 56,511,722 equity shares to the shareholders of the
Transferor Companies on January 22, 2018. The assets, liabilities and reserves of the Transferor
Companies as at April 01, 2017 had been taken over at their fair values

Proporti
on of
Name of ihe Company ig?:::rl :::;igtlan ::::;:; Consideration translerved
inferest
ncqguired
Aster Hotels & Resorts Privaie Hotel Business April 1, 100% | 34,030,554 sharcs of the Company
Limited 2017 held by Aster Hotels & Resors
Private Limlted
before omalgnmaetion  stonds
cancelled and the same number of
shares hod been issued 1o the
sharcholders of Aster Hotels lor
considerafion other than cash.
HeadStart Instituie Private Limited Vocatlonal April 1, 100%% 7,367,360 shares of the Company
Training & 2017 held by HeadStart Institute Private
Education Limited before  amalgamation
stands cancclled and the same
number of shares had been issued
to Lhe shareholders of HeadStar
Institute  for consideration  other
than cash.
PRN Management Services Private Hotel Business April 1, 100% 15,113,808 shares of the Company
Limfted 2017 held by PRN Management
Services Privale Limited belore

amalgamation stands  concelled
and the same number of shores
had been  isswed i the
sharcholders of PRN Management
for considerstion other than cash.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Asset Acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

A

Current Assets

Cash and_cash equivalents 090 0.42 0.31

Other Assets - 23,10 -

Non-current assels

Plant and equipment = 2.05 -

| Current linbilities

Short Term Loans 2.30 = 587.35

Other Linbilities 4.00 041 1.39

Total (5.40) 25.56 (588.43)
Goodwill arising on acquisition

A qualitative description of the factors that make up the goodwill recognised, such as expected synergies from
combining operations of the acquiree and the acquirer, intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition

«or other factors.

Consideration transferred
issue of equity shares

7,316,58

1,583.98

49.47

12,150.03

Less ; Fair Value of net nssets
sequired

731116

1,586.60

3,249.55

12,147.40

Goodwill/{Capital Reserve) Arising

542

(2,71}

{0.08)

.63

L on acquisition

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Company

Since the acquired companies were not in operations there has been negligible impact on the Profits &

Revenue of the Company,

. |0




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

43, Details of dues to Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

Rs. In lakhs
March | March3!,
31,2019 | 2018

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid toj  96.75 Nil
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the] il Nil
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Aet, 2006 along
with the amounts of the paymenl made (o the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in|  Nil Nil
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

"The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of]  Nil Nil
each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the|  Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

44,  The Company does nol have any long term conlracls including derivative contracts for which
there are any material foreseeable losses.

0
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